FY12 UPK Renewal Grant – Questions and Answers Document


FY12 Universal Pre-Kindergarten (UPK) Renewal Grant

Questions and Answers

Please note some of the questions submitted may have been rephrased and/or consolidated.
General

1. Where do I find the intent to bid form? 
There is no intent to bid form.  As stated in the RFP, EEC asked applicants intending to apply for UPK funding to send an e-mail with the name of the program to EEC at procure@massmail.state.ma.us.  The deadline to submit an intent to bid by e-mail was April 22, 2011; however, submission of an intent to bid e-mail was not required.
2. I was unable to send the intent to bid e-mail to EEC by April 22, 2011.  Is my program still eligible for the grant?  Should I send the intent to bid e-mail now?

Your program may still apply for FY12 UPK grant renewal if it did not send the intent to bid e-mail by April 22, 2011.  The intent to bid e-mail was not a requirement and will not jeopardize your grant if not submitted. 

3. How do I know how much funding to request for my FY12 UPK grant?  
As stated in the Funding section of the RFP at p.7, FY11 UPK grantees may apply for funding up to the level identified in Appendix C.  

4. What will happen if some FY11 UPK programs do not apply for FY12 or if they apply for less than they are eligible for?  Will EEC give additional funds to other UPK programs?

As stated in the Funding section of the RFP at pp. 6-7: “If additional funds become available during the grant period, EEC reserves the right to increase the maximum obligation to the grant awarded as a result of this RFP subject to available funding, satisfactory performance and service/community need.  EEC also reserves the right to issue a new RFP to award UPK grants to programs not currently participating in the program.”
5. Can you please confirm whether the due date for the FY12 UPK renewal documents to be submitted is May 23rd as stated in the RFP or May 20th as stated on the Application for Program Grants cover sheet?

The deadline to submit FY12 UPK renewal materials to EEC is May 23, 2011 at 4:00pm.  The Application for Program Grants workbook incorrectly stated May 20, 2011 and has since been updated to reflect May 23, 2011.
6. When EEC says that the deadline for submission is May 23, 2011, does this mean postmarked or received?

For purposes of the FY12 UPK grant renewal, submitted means received.  As stated in the Required Forms to be Submitted section of the RFP at p. 14, all grant application materials must be received by EEC by 4:00pm on May 23, 2011.  EEC will not review applications received after the deadline.

7. What forms are required to be submitted for renewal and which forms are optional?  Are Fiscal forms required?

Please see the Required Forms to be Submitted section of the RFP at pp.14-15 for detailed information about the required forms to be submitted.  Please note that Fiscal forms are required to be sent only if not already on file with the Commonwealth and/or if the grantee needs to update the forms (i.e. change in authorized signatory, etc.).  Fiscal forms include the following:

· A signed Commonwealth Terms & Conditions form 
· W-9 with DUNS # 
· Contractor Authorized Signatory Listing 
· Authorization for Electronic Funds Payment (EFT) Form 
· Executive Order 504 Certification

· Copy of Indirect Cost Approval Letter (if you are claiming Indirect Cost).

8. EEC sent information in the past about what to submit for child assessment data reporting.  Can you forward that again?
Yes. As stated in the Reporting section of the RFP on p. 11: “The prescribed format and expectations will be communicated to all grantees separately after awards are made.”  The Department anticipates that an e-mail will be sent to all grantees shortly after the awards are made that will prescribe the format in which child assessment data should be submitted to EEC.   
9. Will UPK programs be required to submit monthly reports in FY12?
Yes. As stated in the Reporting section of the RFP at p. 12, all programs will be required to complete and submit monthly progress reports. These reports will be based on the projected deliverables section of the RFP and will provide EEC with information regarding expenditures, as well as the successes and challenges in meeting grant priorities and required activities. Information on the reporting process, including a template and due date for these deliverables, will be forthcoming. 
10. When will a FY11 UPK final report be due to EEC?

As stated in the Grant Reporting section of the FY11 RFP on p. 15: “End-of-year reports are due no later than 30 calendar days after the end of the grant term. Failure to submit required reports in a timely manner may affect the release of grant payments.”  30 days after the end of fiscal year 2011 is July 30, 2011. An end of year reporting template will be provided to FY11 grantees within the coming weeks.  

11. Are UPK programs required to be serving 50% or more children receiving EEC subsidies?

No. However, as stated in the Eligibility section of the RFP at p. 4, UPK grantees must either have an existing income eligible contract or a voucher agreement in place, and be willing to accept EEC-subsidized or low-income children.
12. I am a family child care provider who receives UPK funding through the System I am a part of.  May I apply for UPK funds on my own behalf or do I have to continue to receive the grant through the System?
No.  As stated in the Eligibility Section of the RFP on p. 4, “Only the agencies and programs that received UPK Pilot Classroom Quality Grant funding in fiscal year 2011 are eligible to apply for renewal funds.”  In the case of family child care systems the system is the grantee and not the individual provider.  Therefore, the systems must continue to apply for UPK funding on the behalf of UPK providers. 
Online Renewal Questionnaire
13. If EEC has educator information in the PQ Registry why does some information about educators still need to be entered into the online FY12 UPK Renewal Grant Online Questionnaire?

All questions from the FY12 UPK Renewal Grant Online Questionnaire that can be answered by data in the Registry have been removed from the questionnaire. 
14. In trying to fill out the FY12 UPK Grant Renewal Questionnaire a message keeps popping up and saying the document is “read only.”  What is causing this?

If you view Appendix F, which is a read-only for reference copy of the FY12 UPK Grant Renewal Online Questionnaire, you will not be able to fill out this document.  Appendix F is posted to give programs the opportunity to view the questions in the online questionnaire before filling it out.  The online questionnaire must be filled out at the following link:  https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/QDT9QL9.  
15. How should my program respond in the online questionnaire to question 13 if we feel we cannot agree to share child-level information with parental consent for the purpose of assigning SASIDs?  I need approval from my agency/Board to allow this.  Will my program still be eligible for the grant if I select no?

If your program selects “no” in response to question 13 in the online renewal questionnaire which asks your program to agree to provide child-level data with parental consent, please provide detailed information in the text box for that question describing why your program is not able to agree.  EEC will take this information into consideration when reviewing your program’s grant.

Although the Department strongly encourages UPK programs to enter into an agreement to provide child-level data with parental the requirement to enter into an agreement is no longer mandatory to demonstrate a UPK grantee’s attempts to begin aligning UPK with early childhood data systems.  As a result, the terms of the RFP are officially amended.
16. Does EEC have additional information you can provide about how SASIDs will be used if UPK programs are required to assign them to children?

EEC is in the process of developing an early childhood information system which will help link early childhood information with children’s success in learning through third grade.  By providing children a unique identifier, the information system will provide families with opportunities and resources to help their children grow up healthy and learning.  The system also provides a platform for the state to partner with families and children to support the important work of the development of young children.  In addition, many children attend public school after early education and care and allowing the assignment of a unique identifier in early childhood will permit that child to be set up in the system prior to their start in the public school system.  A parental consent form will be available from EEC and will be required before any child-level information will be collected from programs or families.  
17. At the end of the online UPK Renewal Questionnaire it mentioned that all programs have to continue to be accredited as of July 1, 2011 in order to continue to be eligible for the UPK grant.  As a family child care provider with a CDA, does this apply to me?  Do I still need to be NAFCC accredited?  
No.  As stated in the Eligibility section of the RFP at p. 6, family child care providers satisfy Eligibility Requirement #5 in one of three ways: (1) current NAFCC accreditation; (2) non-expired CDA creditial; or (3) having an AA, BA or Master’s degree).
Application for Program Grants (Including Budget Questions)

18. If EEC has all of a program’s information through licensing, the Registry and QRIS, why do we have to fill out things like contact information, etc., for grant forms.  Can EEC pull up our program number and then if any information has changed the program can update it? 
No. EEC is able to view staff information in the PQ Registry as well as look up programs in QRIS to learn more about their self-assessed rating level and aspects of their unique program quality.  It is necessary for EEC to collect additional information through grant forms to ensure that EEC has the appropriate UPK-specific information (i.e. contact person, assessment tool information, etc.). 
19. My program has two staff members whose compensation has been funded through the UPK grant since they were hired about 2 years ago.  According to the RFP, “Funds may not be used to supplant current staff salaries.”  We would like to continue to fund their positions using UPK funding.  Is this possible even though they are “current staff?”
Yes. Positions that were newly funded with the UPK grant in past years may continue to be funded through the UPK grant.  For example, if your program created a new position and hired a Quality Specialist in FY11 you may pay for that position in FY12.  However, if you have educators who are regularly compensated through the program’s general operating budget you may not begin to pay for those positions with UPK funds.
20. My program has 4 preschool classrooms but only 2 of them receive UPK funding.  May we use UPK funding to benefit the other two preschool classrooms as well?
Yes.  As noted in the Fund Use section of the RFP at p. 10,”Funding must directly benefit and target the children in the UPK classrooms/family child care homes.  With justification that is approved by EEC, programs may also use funds to benefit other classrooms and areas of the program within the same site in accordance with UPK goals and priorities.”
21. What would be an allowable expenditure for rental of space in the Other Costs section of the Budget?  Would it be acceptable to break out the rent that is associated with the UPK classrooms?  
Rental space may include costs associated with the rental space for UPK classrooms and/or administrative office space used for overseeing the UPK grant.
22. My program was permitted in past years to use UPK funds to purchase breakfast for preschool children as a part of Comprehensive Services expenses.  Our program serves low income families and does not receive other funding for this purpose.  May we use funds in FY12 to purchase breakfast for children?

No.  As stated in Appendix E of the RFP, Comprehensive Services are defined as: “Costs to support initiatives that relate to incorporating new or enhanced comprehensive services into the program that will facilitate meeting the social-emotional and/or physical health needs of children (e.g., health screenings, access to mental health services, dental care, social services, outpatient therapy, physical therapy, and speech therapy).”  The purchase of breakfast for preschool children is not in line with the meaning of comprehensive services, as defined by the RFP.  The Child Nutrition Programs administered by the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE), including school breakfast programs, play a critical role in ensuring that all children are ready to learn by supporting nutritious meal service in schools, day care centers, family day care homes, residential child care institutions, and summer feeding programs.  For more information, please visit the DESE website at: http://www.doe.mass.edu/cnp/nprograms/
23. My program uses UPK funds to support an increase in hours for staff providing comprehensive services to children.  Since they are internal staff, where should they be listed on the budget?  I would put them under Comprehensive/Contractual Services, however we do not contract with these specialists since they are employed by our agency.

Programs that fund internal staff to provide comprehensive services to children should record these staff on the Comprehensive/Contractual Services line item of the budget; however, it should be indicated in the Budget Narrative section that they are internal staff and not outside contractors. 
24. If we use UPK funding for professional development, do trainers have to be registered with EEC?
Although the Department does not require trainers providing professional development through UPK funds to be registered with EEC, the Department strongly encourages registration.  As stated in Appendix E of the RFP, EEC also encourages programs that spend UPK funds on professional development courses/classes/conferences to align them with EEC’s Core Competency categories and subcategories and target those that offer undergraduate or graduate credits or CEUs.  UPK grantees are encouraged to utilize EEC’s regional Educator and Provider Support (EPS) for the purpose of coordinating trainings.  Contact information for the EPS grantees can be found on EEC’s website at the following link:  http://www.mass.gov/?pageID=eduterminal&L=5&L0=Home&L1=Pre+K+-+Grade+12&L2=Early+Education+and+Care&L3=Workforce+and+Professional+Development&L4=Scholarship+%26+Grant+Opportunities&sid=Eoedu&b=terminalcontent&f=EEC_prof_development_scholarship_grant_20100827_edu_provider_support&csid=Eoedu. 
25. The RFP states that programs may not use UPK funds for out of state trainings or conferences.  If trainers for the ERS tools are only out of state, can we use money to travel and attend these trainings?

No.
26. The Educational Materials and Technological Supports line item of the Budget is said to be limited to 10% of the total award amount in the RFP, however I read somewhere else that the limit was 15%.  Which is correct?

As stated in the Fund Use section of the RFP at p. 10: “No more than 10% of a site’s total grant may be spent on educational materials, supplies, or equipment (including technology purchases).” .

27. On the Accreditation Support line item of the Budget may programs pay for 100% of the costs for the NAEYC annual report and 100% and renewal materials for reaccreditation?
Yes.
28. How should programs fill out the FTE column on the budget for stipends that are not tied to an hourly rate - do you have to fill in the field for FTE on the allocation page?

The FTE field is not required.  If your stipends are not tied to an hourly rate, you do not need to complete the FTE field.
29. If my program is using funds for staff stipends, do I still need to list fringe associated with the stipends?

Yes.  Typically fringe is charged on any payment to an individual and is usually a minimal amount.
30. How should programs list fringe detail in the narrative part of the Budget?  Does it have to be by staff person?

No, fringe does not have to be listed by staff person.  (It may help you to do this since, in the end, you might allocate a smaller total amount to fringe.)  We need you to state what your approved fringe benefit rate is and the pieces that add to the total.

31. Does EEC have access to cost approval letters for higher education institutions?

No, EEC does not have access to cost of approval letters for higher education institutions.  Lead agencies that are part of higher education institutions should submit a cost approval letter to EEC, if indirect costs are entered in the budget.
32. Any agency that does not already have a federally approved indirect cost rate will not be able to get one by the RFP deadline (or even the end of this fiscal year) because the process is complicated and time consuming.  Only agencies that already have direct federal funding (Head Start, CAP’s, CDC’s) will be able to include any indirect in their UPK budget request because of this new requirement.  What should other programs do if they can’t get a letter in time?

Agencies do not need to provide an indirect cost rate approval letter if they are not putting any funds in the Indirect Cost Rate line of the Budget.  Programs may put money into their administrative cost lines without having an approved indirect cost rate or approval letter.  Indirect cost rates are approved by an agency’s cognizant agency (which is frequently Health and Human Services or, in the case of the public school, ESE).
33. The instructions in Appendix A state that Application for Program Grants workbook  file is currently named FY12  UPK_Application_Agency Name.xlsm and to edit the current file name by replacing the words "Agency Name" with your Agency Name.  The file name comes up as Copy of fy12_upk_applicationprogramgrants.  How would you like us to name the file to be sure to keep the EXACT file name as designated by the Department of Early Education and Care?

Please name the file “FY12 UPK_Application_Agency Name.xlsm” and replace “Agency Name” with the name of your program.

34. What is the amendment tab for in the Application for Program Grants workbook?  Should I be filing this out?  Do I need to mail it with my application?  
The Amendment tab in the Application for Program Grants does not need to be filled out or submitted as part of FY12 UPK grant renewal.  This tab may be required during FY12 if programs need to amend their final approved budget.

Projected Deliverables

35. How should staff that was hired with previous years’ UPK funding be reflected in the Projected Deliverables Form?   
Staff that were hired with previous years’ UPK funding and continue to be funded out of UPK can be included in Objective 1 (b) and 1 (c).  The impact of those staff may be reflected in other objectives as well and programs should only provide data for objectives which are impacted by grant funds.
36. When filling out the Projected Deliverables Form is it required to fill in the description box for each item?
No. The description boxes in the Projected Deliverables Form should be filled out if programs need to provide additional detail to EEC so that the data provided can be understood.

37. In the Projected Deliverables the language sounds like we are reflecting on the past year, but do you actually want programs to project for the year forward (FY12)? 
Programs should respond to the Projected Deliverables form by projecting for the year forward.  Programs are encouraged to think about the form as what they hope to accomplish throughout the FY12 grant year.

Proposal Narrative

38. Is EEC able to provide help for answering the Proposal Narrative Questions?  I am having a hard time answering the questions and some of the questions do not seem to apply to me as an independent family child care provider in a rural town.  The questions seem geared to administration in large agencies.  Is how programs answer these questions going to determine if they get the grant? 
EEC cannot provide programs with individual help in answering questions. EEC is building a system of quality in Massachusetts and is committed to supporting the mixed delivery system of providers.  The Department is interested in the responses from all UPK program types to understand how UPK programs operate and collaborate with other stakeholders, are helping to work towards a system of quality in Massachusetts and are meeting the objectives of the UPK grant.  It is important for EEC to understand the many aspects of a programs functioning, knowing that responses may vary from program to program or across provider types.  This will also help EEC understand not only how the program operates but how other EEC resources can interact with and support the program over time.  
39. How do I respond to the Proposal Narrative if I am not familiar with EEC’s mission?

Programs interested in learning more about EEC’s Strategic Direction may access information on EEC’s website at the following link:  http://www.eec.state.ma.us/docs/StrategicPlanFormatted.pdf.  
40. Why is there a scoring rubric for a renewal grant? 
Scoring renewal grants allows EEC the opportunity to identify a program’s strengths and/or areas which might need improvement.  Scoring also serves as a tool for setting benchmarks for follow up with programs during the grant award process.

41. The Proposal Narrative instructions say that we have 1.5 pages to respond to each question.  Do we have to use 1.5 pages or it acceptable to use less?

Grantees may use up to 1.5 pages to respond to each question in the Proposal Narrative but are not required to do so.  It is acceptable to provide responses that are less than 1.5 pages.

42. Question #8 in the Proposal Narrative seems to be asking for an analysis of our FY11 assessment data and how we will utilize it in FY 12 planning.  We will not be able to analyze the data until the end of the grant year when the last assessment is complete.  How should we respond to this question?
Programs should respond to the question based on data collected and any analysis done to date.  You may also respond based on your plan for further analysis in FY11.
43. Some questions referred to the “program” and some asked about “your agency” – how should grantees respond?  Should we respond only based on the perspective of the program site (the level at which the grant is funded), or for the lead agency?

Programs should respond to the Proposal Narrative questions based on the specific grantee site (“program”) as opposed to the lead agency under which the program is funded.

44. My program only has 3 out of 5 of its preschool classrooms that receive UPK funding.  We also have infant and toddler classrooms on-site.  The Proposal Narrative questions are broad and high level.  Do we respond based only on our UPK-funded classrooms?  

UPK programs should respond to the Proposal Narrative questions based on their whole program in a broad sense, and should provide expanded information related to where UPK funds are targeted within the program (i.e. preschool classrooms).  
45. I feel that some of the questions in the Proposal Narrative do not apply to my program – for example:

· In Question 3, part A, my program does not use UPK funds for outreach to providers or families (this isn’t required in the grant).  Should I still respond with how my program does outreach?  Why does EEC ask for this information if outreach isn’t related to the grant objectives?

Programs should respond to all Proposal Narrative questions even if UPK funds are not targeted in that specific way.  Programs’ responses to the Proposal Narrative questions will help EEC gain a complete picture of the UPK program’s operation and understand how grant resources are used to maintain and enhance the program quality.  EEC is building a system of quality in Massachusetts, which UPK grantees are a part of, and will use this information to help understand where there are strengths in the system sand where resources may need targeted for improvement.  
· Question 4 asks us to provide a plan about how we will communicate that our services are available.  Since we use UPK funds on professional development and staff compensation, and not to provide direct service through the grant or referrals, should we respond to this question?  If so, how?
Please respond to the best of your ability.  EEC has designed a set of Proposal Narrative questions that programs and agencies across EEC grants are being asked to respond to.  Having a set of standard questions allows data to be captured consistently across EEC grants and it is important for all grantees to respond to the questions to the best of their ability. It is expected that UPK grantees will be able to provide a response to each of the questions, however if you believe that certain questions in the Proposal Narrative do not apply to your specific UPK program you should first try to respond  to parts of the question that you find most relevant.  If you find that you cannot provide a response, state so and provide information about what your program does that is related to the question asked.  
46. Should UPK programs respond only based on the focus of the UPK grant or the complete program administration, which may or may not be UPK-grant related?  If based on the full program administration, why is EEC asking for this information?

· For example, if UPK funds are used for technology, materials, and assessment and UPK funds are only awarded for a portion of the program, how are programs expected to respond?  The program administration seems irrelevant.  

Programs should respond based on their full program administration.   This helps EEC gain a better understanding of the full operation of UPK programs, despite funds being targeted to only a portion of the program and parts of its operation.  It helps EEC have a complete picture of how quality funds are supporting broader program missions.  
In addition, EEC supports whole program quality through its Quality Rating and Improvement System (QRIS), which offers a way to define, assess and communicate program quality, and the Department is committed to aligning UPK with that quality standard.   Therefore, it is important for EEC to gather information from UPK programs about their complete program.  Responding to the Proposal Narrative questions from the perspective of the complete program administration moves UPK grantees in a direction towards supporting whole program quality.  
47. The Proposal Narrative questions are difficult to understand and don’t all seem to relate to UPK.  If programs feel that a certain question(s) do not apply, how should we respond?  Will our grant be penalized if we indicate N/A?

EEC has designed a set of Proposal Narrative questions that programs and agencies across EEC grants are being asked to respond to.  Having a set of standard questions allows data to be captured consistently across EEC grants and it is important for all grantees to respond to the questions to the best of their ability. It is expected that UPK grantees will be able to provide a response to each of the questions, however if you believe that certain questions in the Proposal Narrative do not apply to your specific UPK program you should first try to respond  to parts of the question that you find most relevant.  If you find that you cannot provide a response, state so and provide information about what your program does that is related to the question asked.  
 QRIS

48. The May 15, 2011 deadline for UPK programs to submit QRIS application and supporting documents does not align with the QRIS grant deadline of June 1, 2011, which many programs are also applying for.  Is EEC able to extend the deadline for UPK programs to submit QRIS applications and documentation to June 1, 2011?
Yes. For programs applying for UPK renewal grant funds, the deadline for submitting QRIS Applications and Self-assessment information has been extended from May 15, 2011 to June 1, 2011.
49. Is it correct that the deadline for submitting a QRIS application and documentation is different than submitting FY12 UPK renewal materials?

Yes, all UPK programs must submit their QRIS application online and send supporting documents to be received by EEC by June 1, 2011.  All FY12 UPK renewal materials, as specified in the RFP, but be received by EEC by 4:00pm on May 23, 2011.
50. When the RFP states that programs must submit “complete” QRIS applications to EEC, what does “complete” mean?    Does that mean the application can be in draft form?  It may not be possible for programs to administer the ECERS, PAS, etc. in a thorough manner in this timeframe.    Programs that are not licensed have the additional work of lining up documentation for Level 1 as well.  Is it possible to get an extension to complete the application if necessary?  
EEC is not providing further extensions for UPK programs to submit complete UPK applications. Submitting a complete QRIS application means that programs must submit a final application in EEC’s QRIS Program Manager, as well as send any necessary supporting documentation to EEC so that it is received by the specified deadline.  QRIS applications in draft form will not be considered complete.  
51. Do programs have to submit QRIS documentation in addition to showing they are accredited?

Programs should follow the instructions in the QRIS Program Manager to determine what documents to submit to EEC. Additional QRIS documentation may be required depending on the level at which they are self-assessing, the standards the program meets and the documentation the program has selected to prove they meet each standard.  

52. If a UPK program self assesses at level 3 or 4 in QRIS when can we expect EEC to send a reliable rater?   Will the raters be EEC staff?

Yes. EEC will be providing outside reliable raters to programs that self assess at levels 3 and 4 in QRIS and will communicate the timeline to programs when available.
53. Will EEC offer opportunity for UPK programs to be trained to reliability on the ERS tools?  
No. At this time, EEC does not have any plans to offer UPK programs the opportunity to be trained to reliability on the ERS tools.  If such an opportunity becomes available EEC will communicate the availability of trainings to the field.  In addition, programs are encouraged to connect with the Educator and Provider Support (EPS) grantee in their region to learn more about training opportunities that may be made available.
54. How should license-exempt public schools show that they meet licensing standards to meet level 1 in QRIS?

License exempt programs will be required to submit documentation verifying they meet EEC licensing requirements.  Additional information for license exempt programs can be found on EEC’s website at the following link:  http://www.eec.state.ma.us/docs1/qris/20110330_eec_lic_documentation.pdf.  

55. Will the QRIS standards remain the same over time?  If they change, how significant would the changes be and how will UPK programs be notified?
After two years of full implementation of QRIS in the Commonwealth, the Department will conduct a validation study on the QRIS Standards. The standards went through a thorough review by a variety of stakeholders prior to being finalized by EEC’s Board. EEC will continue to review QRIS applications submitted and feedback from the field to determine if any amendments will be made to the standards over time.
56. I heard that only certain items in the Program Administration Scale (PAS) are relevant when programs self-assess.  Is this true?  If so, what item numbers must my program assess? 
When using the Program Administration Scale (PAS), programs must complete up to number 21 in the tool.  It is not necessary for programs to complete the Staff Qualifications section, which includes items 22 through 25.

57. Does EEC plan to allow exemptions within any of the QRIS measurement tools (i.e. ERS tools, PAS, etc.)?
No.  

58. If I submit a QRIS application as level 1 but then find that I can document a higher level can I update my application?  If so, how?  

If your program has submitted a final self-assessment application in QRIS your application cannot be updated until 6 months after your program receives its initial level rating from EEC.  At that time, your program may complete and submit a new self-assessment application and supporting documents to request an updated level rating.  

59. Does EEC have any extra copies of the ERS tools that can be given to programs?

No. UPK programs are encouraged to use their UPK grant funds to purchase copies of the ERS tools and other QRIS measurement tools as needed. 

60. When determining what documents to submit with my QRIS application to show that I meet Level 1, the only guidance is “meets licensing regulations.”  Levels 2, 3 and 4 provide more guidance on what documentation to submit.  How do I know what to submit for Level 1?

Programs may review the QRIS Application and Self Assessment References materials posted to EEC’s website for further information about documentation required for each level of QRIS.  This information can be found at the following link:  http://www.mass.gov/?pageID=eduterminal&L=5&L0=Home&L1=Pre+K+-+Grade+12&L2=Early+Education+and+Care&L3=Provider+and+Program+Administration&L4=Quality+Rating+and+Improvement+System+(QRIS)&sid=Eoedu&b=terminalcontent&f=EEC_qris_qris_resources4programs&csid=Eoedu.  
61. Since EEC is moving towards aligning UPK with QRIS, does this mean that the UPK requirement of accreditation may be waived so that programs do not have multiple sets of quality standards to respond to?
No. As stated in the Eligibility section of the RFP at p. 6, UPK programs are currently required to be accredited in order to maintain their eligibility to receive UPK grant funds.  

62. Are programs that receive UPK funding for their preschool also required to submit a QRIS application for their after school program even though the after school does not receive UPK funding?

No. UPK programs are not required to submit QRIS applications for other program types which operate at their program site.  For instance, a program that receives UPK funding for their preschool but also operates an after school program is not required to submit a QRIS application for the after school program.

63. What should programs do if they don’t think they can be level 3 in QRIS by FY13?  There are certain QRIS standards, such as staff qualifications, that are difficult to meet in two years.  Will programs lose their UPK funding if they are not level 3 by FY13?

Programs are encouraged to continue to work to advance their program quality to the best of their ability.  Please note that all programs completing QRIS applications are able to request up to four exemptions if they have identified specific barriers to meeting certain standards at a rating level.  Of the 4 exemptions, three (3) of these exemptions may be applied to standards criteria that programs should have resolved within 12 months of their QRIS application submission date and  one (1) may be applied towards one standard criterion that may require a significant length of time to achieve, for example obtainment of a BA.  For additional information about requesting exemptions, please visit the QRIS Resources page on EEC’s website:  http://www.eec.state.ma.us/docs1/qris/20110330_qris_exemption_qpm.pdf. 
UPK programs should use question 10 in the Proposal Narrative to provide additional detail to EEC about any perceived barriers in achieving level 3 by FY13.  EEC’s Board will continue to have policy discussions related to UPK and its alignment with QRIS and it has not been determined if or when UPK programs may be at risk for losing UPK funding if they do not achieve a certain quality level in QRIS.

64. Is UPK being phased out in place of QRIS?
No.  However, subject to discussion and approval by the Board of EEC, the Department intends to align UPK with QRIS so that there is one standard of quality in Massachusetts 
65. How long may UPK programs remain at a certain level in QRIS?  Is a certain amount of time allocated for each level?
At this time there are not specific requirements for UPK programs in terms how long they may remain a certain level in QRIS.  As noted in the RFP, EEC’s Board will continue to discuss the alignment of UPK with QRIS over the course of FY12.  As new information becomes available EEC will communicate this to grantees.  Please note that QRIS Levels are valid for a maximum of 2 years from the date that the Level is received.
66. While completing my QRIS application I’ve realized I have questions and need help.  Who can I contact at EEC for technical issues?  What about with understanding certain standards and what I need to submit?

For technical issues related to QRIS programs should e-mail Mary Mendoza at mary.mendoza@massmail.state.ma.us.  For other QRIS related questions, please e-mail eecqris@massmail.state.ma.us. 
Other
67. How do I update educator information in the PQ Registry?  Also, what if I’m having problems logging in?
For technical questions (problems with your user account, technical issues with accessing and using the system, etc.) contact the EEC Help Desk at EECHelpDesk@massmail.state.ma.us.  If you have questions about the PQ Registry and its use, please contact the PQ Registry team at EECPQRegistry@massmail.state.ma.us. 
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